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ADDENDUM NO.  2

on

PROJECT NO. DGS C-0015-P002 PHASE 002
PROJECT TITLE - DGS Space Occupancy and Utilization Planning
PROFESSIONAL:
Department of General Services
1800 Herr Street
Harrisburg, PA, 17103

If you submitted a bid prior to this Addendum being issued, your bid has been discarded and you 
must re-submit your bid(s) prior to the bid opening date and time.  

ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES – ALL CONTRACTS

Item 1 - See below for clarifications issued via this Addendum.

Item 2 - The DGS BRE Space Optimization and Utilization Plan Guidelines are attached for reference.

Item 3 - The BDISBO presentation is attached for reference.

SPECIFICATION CHANGES – ALL CONTRACTS
       
Item 1 -   N/A    
DRAWING CHANGES – ALL CONTRACTS

Item 1 -   N/A 



 
 
C-0015-P002-001 - DGS Space Occupancy and Utilization Planning 

ADDENDUM #2 

Questions, Responses and Clarifications 

Proposer Submitted Questions and Responses 

TAG QUESTION RESPONSE 

1 

Can you provide additional detail on what is 
expected within the Site/Grounds conditions 
assessments? Will Site/Grounds conditions 
assessments be required if no FCAs are present 
at a site(s) currently? RFP Section 4.3.e.4 
"Perform Site/Grounds conditions assessments 
at all the above locations receiving Facilities 
Conditions Assessments." 

It is now hereby confirmed that site condition assessments 
are to be included for each of the four buildings, 
encompassing the circulation paths, roads, parking areas, 
and any other significant site features in their immediate 
vicinity.  Based on the findings, the assessments will 
include detailed recommendations for improvements or 
repairs to enhance safety, accessibility and 
functionality. 

2 

Please confirm if base files given will be 
AutoCAD or Revit (BIM) and if final deliverables 
will be required to be transformed into Revit per 
this statement: RFP Section 4.3.f.3c "Digital 
drawing files shall be prepared in Revit software 
in order to facilitate uploading into the TRIRIGA 
asset management platform currently in use by 
the Commonwealth." 

The base plans will be furnished to the consultant in 
AutoCAD format.  The consultant shall provide final 
deliverables in Revit format as stated in the RFP.  
Creations of base plans where none exist is not 
anticipated but would be compensated as an additional 
service if needed. 

3 

Can you share details on what you have 
currently in terms of AutoCAD drawings for the 
four sites in-scope? Do the drawings 
encompass each building? What is missing? 
How old are the drawings? Have there been 
capital projects post-AutoCAD drawings? 

Base plans are available for all buildings specified in the 
RFP.  The drawings are updated periodically but will 
require validation by the consultant. 

4 

Can you provide additional guidance on the 
level of detail expected on the FCAs? Are we 
looking to get a sense of major improvements 
and deferred maintenance at a high-level, or are 
we looking to perform a full FCA with detailed 
inspections reviewing all building systems, 
deficiencies, replacement values, corrective 
actions, etc.? 

FCAs will be completed to a Uniformat Level 3 and will 
have detailed inspections and reports. 

5 
Can you provide the last time FCAs were 
completed (if at all) for each of the four 
buildings in-scope? 

FCAs for the four buildings within the scope were never 
conducted. 

6 

The RFP states that the DGS BRE has completed 
Phase 1 of a space optimization and utilization 
initiative where guidelines aimed at maximizing 
space efficiency were developed. The RFP also 
outlines proposed tenants of the 4 in scope 
buildings. Has the BRE already determined the 
total space needs of the Departments proposed 

The consultant’s scope of work will include addressing 
space needs and programming as part of the project 
deliverables. 



 
 

to occupy each building or is that part of the 
work to do? 

7 

As part of the BRE's Phase 1 work, has the BRE 
established guiding principles to be used in 
guiding scenario planning for the proposed 
tenant agencies? 

Yes, the guidelines are attached for reference. 

8 

Have the agencies identified to move into the 4 
buildings been notified of the changes or is 
change management and communications 
included in the scope? 

DGS BRE will manage communication with the 
agencies. 

9 

Will the agencies that currently occupy the 
buildings in scope remain in those locations? 

Potentially.  A key part of this effort will involve 
evaluating and identifying the most suitable location for 
the identified agencies based on their specific needs 
and requirements as part of a comprehensive overview. 

10 Can an overview of the findings from Phase 1 be 
provided? 

Yes, the findings will be presented to the consultant 
selected for negotiations. 

12 

The contract duration is listed as 140 days for 
Phases 1-4, and 180 days for Phase 5. Based on 
our read of the Phase 5 requirements, Phase 5 
consists of an evaluation of the engagement 
and an associated report. Is the intention of 
Phase 5 to monitor progress across 
implementation of the plan? Follow up - is DGS 
open to discussion around the timing dedicated 
to each phase within the overall 320 contract 
days? 

Yes, Phase 5 will involve monitoring the progress of the 
plan’s implementation.  DGS is open to discussion 
regarding the timing and is willing to negotiate the 
proposed total duration given a mutually agreed-upon 
and reasonable time frame can be established between 
all parties involved. 

13 

Can you please confirm that "Pennsylvania 
Department of General Services / DGS Space 
Occupancy and Utilization Planning C-0015-
P002 - Strategic Facilities Planning Consulting 
Services" is the official response title we should 
use for the proposal as there are other names 
used throughout the documents. 

The proposal should be titled “Technical Submittal for 
Strategic Facility Planning Consulting Services for the 
Department of General Services” and include the RFP 
No. “DGS 2024-DGS-SFP-1” on the cover page. 

14 

What elements of TRIRIGA or any other tools are 
being used to monitor occupancy levels at 
sites? How does that vary from traditional office 
locations to alternate-use spaces? 

DGS BRE current use of Portfolio, Leasing, and Space 
Management modules of TRIRIGA is expected to be 
supplemented by way of the space utilization plans to 
be delivered under this study. 

15 Do you have badge data to gain utilization 
insight? 

No such information is currently expected to be 
available. 

16 
Do you use a seat reservation system for 
desking? If so does it apply to those with 
assigned seats? 

Adoption of such a system beyond conference areas 
may be facilitated, in part, by the results of this study. 

17 Would you be open to occupancy studies to 
record the usage of space? 

Refer to the RFP. 

18 

How many departmental lead interviews should 
be planned for across the 4 sites? 1 per 
Department listed or more? 

We recommend planning one interview per department 
initially to align with the listed scope.  However, 
additional interviews may be necessary to account for 
large departments, site-specific variations, or to gather 
more detailed insights as needed.  Please communicate 



 
 

how you recommend addressing this component via 
your proposed work plan. 

19 
Can workplace surveys (upon review and 
approval) to employees be implemented as part 
of the stakeholder data-gathering process? 

Yes. 

20 Are the departments supported by DGS on the 
Microsoft 365 platform? 

Yes. 

 



Bureau of Real Estate 
503 North Office Building | Harrisburg, PA 17120 | 717.787.4394 | F 717.783.7127 | www.dgs.pa.gov 

• Adherence to Manual 260.01, Manual for Space Utilization

• Plan for 200 usable square feet per person space capacity on any given day. Additional
casual and informal seating may be added to provide supplemental overflow space. For
example:

o An organization may have 80 employees in their complement but on any given
day an average of 40 employees are likely to be on-site; therefore, this
organization’s space would be approximately 8,000 SF and have 40 traditional
workspaces

o A building that has 50,000 usable square feet of office space should
accommodate 250 employees on any given day with traditional workspaces

• Target building occupancy rate - 85%. For example:
o A building that accommodates 250 employees on a given day should have an

average of 213 employees on site per day. This can be achieved by increasing the
employee density of spaces and creating shared amenities.

• Plan for maximum mobility and flexibility – spaces should support multifunctionality as
often as possible and furniture should be easily moved/reconfigured to different spaces

o Filing cabinets, bookshelves, lockers and other supplemental office equipment
should be in open space in lieu of being placed in a dedicated room, unless there
is a distinct operational need to do so

• Employees that are on site 3+ days per week will be allocated an assigned desk

• Employees averaging less than 3 days/week on site are expected to share desks

• Office sizes are to be consistent regardless of position or title and planned according to
functional need and ADA compliance - consistent sizes support space flexibility.

• Spaces that are used infrequently and non-essential to an organization’s core mission
should be in common core space to be leveraged by multiple organizations. Examples
include breakrooms/ kitchenettes, nursing parents’ rooms, supplemental conference
space, hearing rooms, and overflow workspace. These supplemental core spaces are
also defined by who has access to them.

o Neighborhood spaces are shared amongst building tenants and available on
each floor of office space where possible.

o Flex spaces are available to all commonwealth employees, are typically managed
by DGS, and strategically located based on operational needs and availability /
proximity to similar resources in other buildings.

December 2, 2024 

Below are general recommendations developed through the Space Optimization and Utilization 
Plan (SOUP) that should be referenced during space planning efforts. These guidelines are 
subject to change. 

Contract No. DGS 2024-DGS-SFP-1

Project No. DGS C-0015-P002

http://www.dgs.pa.gov/
https://www.oa.pa.gov/Policies/Documents/m260_1.pdf


Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Pre-Bid Meeting 
BDISBO Presentation

C-0015-P002 - Strategic Facilities 
Planning Consulting Services

Issuing Officer-

Susan Stanisic– sstanisic@pa.gov

January 16,  2025 2:00 PM  



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Small Diverse Business Enterprise (SDB) and Veteran 
Business Enterprise (VBE)

Bid References

RFP No. DGS 2024-DGS-SFP-1 

• PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION FOR PROPOSERS
• PART 2 PROPOSAL FORMAT AND REQUIRED INFORMATION

• 2-1. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION  -
• ITEM # 2. Small Diverse Business (SDB) Participation Submittal
• ITEM #3. Veteran Business Enterprise (VBE) Participation Submittal 

• 2-2 Mandatory Proposal Requirements
• 2-3 Proposal Format

Appendices
• SDB Participation Packet‐Prof Selections‐0015P002

• VBE Participation Packet‐Prof Selections‐0015P002

2

A Bidder/Offeror’s failure to meet the SDB participation goal in full and the 
VBE participation goal in full, or their failure to receive an approved Good 
Faith Efforts waiver for any unmet portion of either the SDB or VBE 
participation goal will result in the rejection of the Bid or Proposal as 
nonresponsive.



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Solicitation Specific Goals

3

Primes are welcome to exceed the goal!

• Available subcontracting opportunities across the entire state for the applicable services,

• Availability of DGS‐verified SDB/VBEs to perform commercially useful functions, and

• Historical analysis of similar projects within the last 3 years.  

PA ‐ eMarketplace

VBESDBC-0015-P002

3%16%



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

SDB and VBE Classification

Small Diverse Business 
(SDB)

Goal oriented

Woman Business Enterprise 
(WBE)

 Service-Disabled Veteran 
Business Enterprise (SDVBE)

Minority Business Enterprise 
(MBE)

 LGBT Business Enterprise 
(LGBTBE)

Disability-Owned Business 
Enterprise (DOBE)

4

Veteran Business 
Enterprise (VBE)

Goal oriented

 Veteran Business 
Enterprise (VBE)

 Service‐Disabled Veteran 
Business Enterprise 
(SDVBE)

Vendors must self‐certify as a Small Business (SB) prior to SDB/VBE validation.

SDBs and VBEs must be certified/valid as of bid close due date and time.

SB Eligibility 
Requirements

•The business must be a for‐profit, 
United States business.
•The business must be independently 
owned.
•The business may not be dominant in 
its field of operation.
•The business may not employ more 
than 100 full‐time equivalent 
employees.
•The business may not exceed three‐
year average gross revenues of $47 
Million, regardless of business type.

Commonwealth Phone Directory | Department of 
General Services | Commonwealth of Pennsylvania



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Finding SDB/VBE vendors

• http://www.dgs.internet.state.pa.us/suppliersearch

• Access Search Guide -
https://www.dgs.pa.gov/Small%20Diverse%20Business
%20Program/Documents/Finding%20SBs%20and%20S
DBs.pdf

• Supplier Search assistance available from Issuing Officer or Bureau 
of Diversity Procurement Liaison

5



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Quick Search

6

IMPORTANT: Always click Reset prior to a 
new search to clear parameters from previous 
searches

http://www.dgs.internet.state.pa.us/suppliersearch



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Advanced Search
Select one or more 
classifications. To pull 
only SDBs, check 
“Select all Small 
Diverse Business 
Classifications” below. 
To Include SBs, check 
“Small Business”.

Enter a brief code description (e.g. Door)

Browse and select one or 
more codes. Don’t know 
the codes you want? 
Download the entire list 
in Excel. 
See slide 13 to 
understand the UNSPSC 
code hierarchy.

Click arrow to 
expand 
Segment for 
additional 
codes

OR

7



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

UNSPSC Commodity Code Search



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

UNSPSC Commodity Code Search 
Write down 
your code 
selections 



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Advanced Search
Use multiple filters to restrict your 
search results to exactly what and 
where you need.

10



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Search Results

11

Certified Small Businesses 
• Advanced Building Controls LLC
• Advanced Building Performance Inc
• Advanced Cleaning Solutions LLC

Small Diverse Businesses 
• Advanced Building Performance Inc
• Advanced Cleaning Solutions LLC

Veteran Business Enterprise
• Advanced Cleaning Solutions LLC



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Supplier Profile

12

SB, SDB & VBE Expiration Dates

SB, SDB & VBE Classifications

Contact Information



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Search Results

13

Certified Small Businesses 
• Advanced Building Controls LLC
• Advanced Building Performance Inc
• Advanced Cleaning Solutions LLC

Small Diverse Businesses 
• Advanced Building Performance Inc
• Advanced Cleaning Solutions LLC

Veteran Business Enterprise
• Advanced Cleaning Solutions LLC



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Excel Export Results – Supplier Contacts
Excel Export Results includes Vendor ID, Supplier Name, Contact Name, Email,  
Phone, Fax

14



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

SDB/VBE Forms in e-Builder

15

Scroll down to 
find SDB and 
VBE 
Participation   
Packets 



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

New Forms and Processes

•SDB/VBE Instructions – SDB-1/VBE-1  READ
•SDB/VBE Participation Submittal – SDB-2/VBE-2
•SDB/VBE Utilization Schedule – SDB-3/VBE-3
•Letter of Commitment – SDB 3.1/VBE-3.1
•Guidance for Good Faith Effort (GFE) Waiver –
SDB-4/VBE-4  READ

•GFE Waiver – SDB-5/VBE-5 

16

Bid packages available in e‐Builder in the
Package Invitation/Bid Info in the Invitation Documents folder



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Solicitation-Specific Goals

17



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

SDB Submittal – SDB-2

18



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

SDB Utilization Schedule – SDB-3

19



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

SDB Utilization Schedule – SDB-3 cont’d

20



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Guidance to Document GFE  SDB-4

READ, READ, READ
 The ability or desire of a prime contractor to perform the work of a 
contract with its own organization does not relieve the Offeror of the 
responsibility to make Good Faith Efforts to meet the stated 
participation goal.

• Prime must complete all components of the GFE paperwork. 
Details/Evidence are important, proof is required.

• Carefully review SDB and VBE submittal Instructions, specifically 
Section VI of SDB/VBE‐1 which lists pertinent items as Fatal errors.

21



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Good Faith Efforts Packet SDB-5

Good Faith Efforts (GFE) Partial or Full 
Waiver
 Part 1 - Anticipated Scopes of Work Applicant 

Made Available to SDBs
 Part 2 - Identified SDBs and Record of 

Solicitations 
 Part 3 - SDB Outreach Compliance Statement 
 Part 4 - Additional Information Regarding Rejected 

SDB Quotes 
 Part 5 - SDB Subcontractor Unavailability 

Certificate

22

FM0



Slide 22

FM0 Please double check to make sure we are using professional design terminology.
Fox, Mary, 2022-02-02T13:41:23.442



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

GFE Waiver – Part 1

23

Anticipated Scopes of Work Applicant Made Available to SDBsAnticipated Scopes of Work Applicant Made Available to SDBs



Pennsylvania Department of General Services24

Click to add text

Identified SDBs and Record of SolicitationsIdentified SDBs and Record of Solicitations

GFE Waiver – Part 2



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

GFE Waiver – Part 3

25

SDB Outreach Compliance StatementSDB Outreach Compliance Statement

FM0
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FM0 Please replace with professional design screenshot.
Fox, Mary, 2022-02-02T13:42:48.543



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

GFE Waiver – Part 4

26

Additional Information Regarding Rejected SDB QuotesAdditional Information Regarding Rejected SDB Quotes

FM0
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FM0 Please replace with professional design packet screenshot.
Fox, Mary, 2022-02-02T13:43:19.194



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

GFE Waiver – Part 5

27

SDB Subcontractor Unavailability CertificateSDB Subcontractor Unavailability Certificate

FM0
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FM0 Please replace with professional design packet screenshot.
Fox, Mary, 2022-02-02T13:43:52.075



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

SDB/VBE Response Submittal

28



Best Practices

Do’s
• Read the solicitation and all 
instructions completely.

• Submit SEPARATE SDB and 
VBE submittal forms.

• Validate subcontractor 
SDB/VBE status in DGS 
Supplier Database.

• Ensure that all appropriate 
forms are completed and 
signed correctly.

• Submit questions early per the 
solicitation requirements.

Don'ts
• Make any assumptions.
• Copy SDB submittal 
paperwork.  Download and 
complete the VBE submittal 
separately, titles and accuracy 
matter.

• Skip any portion of the GFE 
request documentation.



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

REMINDER

30

SEPARATE SDB/VBE 
SUBMITTALS WITH 
EACH DISCIPLINE 
AND  BASE BID!



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

REMINDER

31

Failure to submit 
fully completed SDB 
and VBE submittal 
packets or GFE 
waiver request 

documentation will 
result in removal of 
your bid for award 
consideration



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

Questions?

32



Pennsylvania Department of General Services

BDISBO Contact Info

33

Bureau of Diversity, Inclusion and 
Small Business Opportunities

North Office Building
401 North Street, Room 611
Harrisburg, PA 17120-0500

717.783.3119
GS-BDISBO@pa.gov


